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This complicated building, designed by the architectural 
firm of Edwards and Sayward of Atlanta, represents an example of 
hotel architecture during the Florida boom period.

The plan is composed of two separate and distinct sections, 
the principal wing to the south and the "U" shaped building to 
the north connected by glazed galleries. The south (principal) 
wing was the earliest constructed, originally as a private resi­ 
dence, 1906-10. The "U" shaped building consists of a middle 
and north wing, with a connecting section, the whole of which
was added when the property became a hotel, 1925-213.

,v
The south (principal) wing has the first (ground) level 

used for public rooms, a second level with private rooms and 
baths, a small penthouse on the third level, and a full sized 
partial basement for semi-public functions. The north and 
middle wings on the first (ground), second, and third(attic) 
levels have private rooms and baths. The connecting section is 
identical, but contains, a lounge on the first and second levels 
and a boiler room at basement level. The entire building has 
an unused garret space above the third floor level. The porte- 
cochere (south elevation) opens on to a paved circular driveway. 
The principal doorway of this facade is off-centered and is set 
within an enclosed porch. The small porch is simply treated and 
decorated with wooden Doric columns at the corners. An open 
veranda running along thq center portion of .this facade is em­ 
bellished with four square pedestals, topped with concrete urns. 
Generally this facade is assymetrical and is composed of simple 
elements. At this point it should be noted that while the north 
and east facades are simply treated and follow a regular fenes- 
tration rhythm, the west facade of the building is elaborate at 
entry ways and dormers, and has a variety of roof planes. In 
general, this entire facade reflects the fact that it opens onto 
the main grounds of the hotel. The entry way facing west on the 
south (principal) wing is elaborate with a pedimented portico, 
arched openings and decorated by festoons and garlands in high 
relief. On either side of the pediment concrete urns adorn the 
balustraded roof which runs along the second level. At the 
center of the glazed gallery connecting the north and middle 
wings a similarly decorated entry way leads to the northernmost 
court yard.

The pattern of windows is regular. On the south (principal) 
wing the original wooden windows are single-paned double-hung 
with wooden trim. Most of the exterior doors and windows of the 
south (principal) wing have a simple wood pediment. The remain­ 
ing windows on the north, middle wings, and connecting section, 
are steel casement. The central raised portions (the stairwells 
of these wings have arched steel casement windows. Decorations
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consist of plaster lintels adorned by a raised festoon and medalion 
above the windows; decorative wrought iron railings are located 
immediately below the windows on the ground level. A few of the 
remaining windows on the north facade of the south (principal) 
wing facing the open courtyard are double hung, leaded sash.

The roof on each wing is hipped with corners slightly 
upturned and covered with red ceramic tiles. The kitchen has a 
separate peaked roof with a ventilating cupola above. On the 
second level of the west side of the south (principal) wing the 
roof is flat and covered with asphalt and gravel. There are 
several roof dormers on every wing. Two stuccoed chimneys are 
located on each end of the south (principal) wing, and one large 
stucco and brick chimney is located in the kitchen. There is a 
similar chimney at the center of the connecting section between th- 
north and middle wings.

The wall construction of the north and middle wings, as 
well as the connecting section, are built of hollow clay tile 
with wood trussed above. The south (principal) wing is of wood 
frame construction covered with stucco. Generally the stucco 
which is painted white with yellow trim is in deteriorated con­ 
dition. The foundations are brick and/or concrete throughout. 
The glazed gallery is built of exposed wood painted yellow.

Very little significant hardware is to be found on the 
exterior, although brass hinges and doorknobs are common inside.

As far as is known the original dwelling, prior to 1925, 
contained an indoor pool in what is now the glazed courtyard. The 
rooms surrounding the pool were various parlors, library, and 
dining areas. The kitchen on the east opened onto the courtyard 
and dining areas. On the second level around the courtyard rooms 
were arranged in suites and baths. When remodeled as a hotel 
the rooms on the ground floor were changed to accommodate the 
main dining room in the southeast, library in the southwest, lobby 
in the northwest, glazed courtyard and hall in the center, and a 
private dining room in the northeast. The kitchen remained the 
same and the pool was filled. The ceiling of the courtyard was 
composed of operable glass panels and overhead curtains. The 
second level suites also remained the same. The north and middle 
wings contained private rooms and baths on all three levels. 
The connecting section has two lounges with marble and wood trimmed 
fireplaces. The fireplaces in the public rooms of the south 
(principal) wing are elaborate and built of red brick with egg 
and dart cornices and various other decorations. The lobby still 
maintains its "U"-s.haped mahogany stairway to the second floor. 
______________________________________ (Continued)____
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The site is surrounded by residential streets and is 
well landscaped. The main grounds, on the West, are planted with 
oak, palm, magnolia, dogwood, and cabbage palms as well as numerou 
flowering shrubs including azaleas. The grounds to the east 
include a parking area, stables, garage, and gymnasium. The 
latter isaone story wood frame building with shingled wall and red 
tile roof built circa 1906.

In general, the building reflects the French neoclassic 
style with Mediterranean overtones. Even more importantly the 
building reflects the wealth of the original owners, its function 
as a hotel during the Florida boom period, and its location in 
a temperate climate.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

ChaseCharles William Chas€ (1857-1909), a relative of Samuel 
of United States Constitutional Convention fame, came to Gaines 
ville, Florida in 1890 and invested in the Dutton Phosphate 
Company, later becoming its President. Successful not only in 
the phosphate industry but also in railroads, real estate and 
turpentine, Chase, in 1906, undertook the construction of a 
large private residence. However, the house was not complete 
when he died in 1909.

Major William Reuben TJ^mas (1866-1943) acquired the Chase 
property in 1909 (not documented) and completed the house. 
Major Thomas, son of Dr. G. P. Thomas who was a Gainesville 
pioneer, was the mayor of Gainesville for seven years and a 
Florida state senator for four years. Instrumental in develop­ 
ing the social and cultural environment of Gainesville, Major 
Thomas was the key figure in bringing the University of Florida 
and the Chautaugua,a national system of camp meetings, to 
Gainesville.

The house was maintained as Major Thomas f s residence until 
1925. Influenced by the Florida land boom, Thomas saw a need 
for a luxury resort hotel in Gainesville and with financial 
backing from the newly formed Gainesville Chamber of Commerce 
(1925), he began the conversion of his house into the Hotel 
Thomas. The hotel opened in 1928 and hosted many important 
national and state figures. During. World War Two, it was used 
as a club for men from Camp Blanding. The Hotel was a social 
center for the area, and remained so until it was closed in 196

The Atlanta based firm of Edwards and Saywards was em­ 
ployed to design the hotel additions in 1925. William A. 
Edwards, who supervised the hotel conversion, designed most of 
the college and university buildings for the State of Florida 
between 1905 and 1926 and numerous public buildings in the south

The Thomas Hotel is a visual statement of Florida resort 
architecture during the boom period. It was designed by one of 
the South's leading architects. feegun by an important figure 
in early Gainesville business development, the house was the

(Continued)
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8. Significance (page 2)

residence of another Gainesville figure who was important in the 
development of Gainesville as the cultural center of North Central 
Florida, and it became, after its conversion into a hotel, an 
important community meeting place.
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